

# Kansas Register

Vol. 39, No. 15

April 9, 2020

Pages 467-480



**In this issue ...**

**Page**

**Rates**

- Pooled Money Investment Board**
- Notice of investment rates .....469

**Notices**

- Kansas State Employees Health Care Commission**
- Notice of meeting .....469
- Kansas Water Authority**
- Notice of meeting .....469
- City of Lenexa, Kansas**
- Notice to bidders for Lackman Multi-Purpose Trail project .....469
- Kansas Department of Administration – Office of the Chief Financial Officer**
- Notice of petroleum storage tank release trust fund unobligated balances.....470
- Wichita State University**
- Notice of intent to lease land and/or building space .....470
- Notices of intent to lease real property .....470-471
- Kansas Department of Revenue**
- Notice of available publications.....471

**Executive Branch**

- Office of the Governor**
- Executive Order 20-17, temporary relief from certain unemployment insurance requirements in response to the COVID-19 pandemic .....471
- Secretary of State**
- Executive appointments.....472
- Notice of forfeiture for March .....473

**New State Laws**

- House Bill 2168**, concerning health provider assessments; relating to the hospital provider assessment and the quality care assessment; increasing the rate and expanding the base of the hospital provider assessment; amending membership on the healthcare access improvement panel; extending the quality care assessment.....474

**Index to administrative regulations .....477**

The Kansas Register (USPS 0662-190) is an official publication of the state of Kansas, published by authority of K.S.A. 75-430. The Kansas Register is published weekly and a cumulative index is published annually by the Kansas Secretary of State. One-year subscriptions are \$80 (Kansas residents must include applicable state and local sales tax). Single copies, if available, may be purchased for \$2. **Periodicals postage paid at Topeka, Kansas.**

**POSTMASTER:** Send change of address form to Kansas Register, Secretary of State, 1st Floor, Memorial Hall, 120 SW 10th Ave., Topeka, KS 66612-1594.

© Kansas Secretary of State 2020. Reproduction of the publication in its entirety or for commercial purposes is prohibited without prior permission. Official enactments of the Kansas Legislature and proposed and adopted administrative regulations of state agencies may be reproduced in any form without permission.

Hard copy subscription information and current and back issues of the Kansas Register (PDF Format) can be found at the following link: [http://www.sos.ks.gov/pubs/pubs\\_kansas\\_register.asp](http://www.sos.ks.gov/pubs/pubs_kansas_register.asp).

**Register Office:**  
 1st Floor, Memorial Hall  
 785-368-8095  
 Fax 785-296-8577  
[kansasregister@ks.gov](mailto:kansasregister@ks.gov)



**Published by**  
 Scott Schwab  
 Secretary of State  
 1st Floor, Memorial Hall  
 120 SW 10th Ave.  
 Topeka, KS 66612-1594  
 785-296-4564  
<https://sos.kansas.gov>

Cover Artwork: Flint Hills, Geary County  
 Photo by Todd Caywood

State of Kansas

**Pooled Money Investment Board**

**Notice of Investment Rates**

The following rates are published in accordance with K.S.A. 75-4210. These rates and their uses are defined in K.S.A. 12-1675(b)(c)(d) and K.S.A. 12-1675a(g).

**Effective 4-6-20 through 4-12-20**

Term	Rate
1-89 days	0.06%
3 months	0.01%
6 months	0.08%
12 months	0.11%
18 months	0.19%
2 years	0.21%

Scott Miller  
Director of Investments

Doc. No. 048044

State of Kansas

**State Employees Health Care Commission**

**Notice of Meeting**

The Kansas State Employees Health Care Commission (HCC) has scheduled a call-in meeting to be held at 1:30 p.m. (CST) Friday, April 17, 2020. Please register for the HCC Meeting at <https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/7198840583029188620>.

After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the webinar.

DeAngela Burns-Wallace, Chair  
Health Care Commission

Doc. No. 048049

State of Kansas

**Kansas Water Authority**

**Notice of Meeting**

The Kansas Water Authority (KWA) will have their meeting by webinar at 10:00 a.m. Tuesday, April 14, 2020.

For additional information or how to access the meeting, visit the Kansas Water Office website at [www.kwo.ks.gov](http://www.kwo.ks.gov) or call 785-296-3185.

Katie Patterson-Ingles  
Communications Director

Doc. No. 048052

(Published in the Kansas Register April 9, 2020.)

**City of Lenexa, Kansas**

**Notice to Bidders**

Sealed bids Lackman Multi-Purpose Trail (KDOT Project No. 46 TE-0430-01, CMS: 017196004) will be accepted by the City of Lenexa, Kansas at the Community Development Department, Lenexa City Hall, 17101 W. 87th St. Pkwy., Lenexa, KS 66219 until 1:00 p.m. (CST) April 23, 2020, at which time bids will be publicly opened and read aloud at the Lenexa City Hall. Any bid received after the

designated closing time will not be considered and will be returned unopened.

All bids shall be submitted to the Community Development Department Customer Service Staff (Main Level) in sealed envelopes addressed to the City of Lenexa, Kansas, Attn: City Clerk, and marked "Bid for: Lackman Multi-Purpose Trail (KDOT Project No. 46 TE-0430-01, CMS: 017196004). Bidders desiring contract documents for use in preparing bids, as well as copies of plans, specifications, bidding documents, and other contract documents, may be obtained at Drexel Technologies, Inc., 10840 W. 86th St., Lenexa, KS 66214, or <http://planroom.drexeltech.com/>. Note: Davis Bacon Wage Rates apply to this project.

Each bidder will be responsible for ensuring that it has received any and all addenda issued by city in accordance with IB-10 of the instructions to bidders. Contractors should read and be fully familiar with all contract documents including addenda before submitting a bid. In submitting a bid, the bidder warrants that it has read the contract documents and is fully familiar therewith and that it has visited the site of the work to fully inform itself as to all existing conditions and limitations and shall include in its bid a sum to cover the cost of all items of the work as specified in the contract documents.

No oral telegraphic, telephonic proposals, or alterations will be considered. Facsimile transmissions will not be accepted.

The following items must be included in the sealed envelope with the bid:

- a. Bid form;
- b. 5% bid security – bid bond, cashier’s check or certified check (see below); and
- c. Acknowledgment of addenda issued by city.

Each bidder shall file with its bid a bid bond, a cashier’s check, or a certified check drawn on an acceptable bank, made payable to the City of Lenexa, Kansas, in an amount equal to five percent (5%) of the total bid, which shall be retained by the City of Lenexa, Kansas until a contract for the project has been executed. Bid Bonds will be returned to the bidders, with the exception of the best and lowest and second best and second lowest responsible bidders, within twenty-one (21) days after their bids are rejected. The bid deposit of the lowest and the second lowest responsible bidders will be returned when the performance bond, maintenance bond and statutory bond, each in an amount equal to 100% of the contract amount, required insurance certificates, and other required documents shall have been furnished and the contract documents have been executed by the successful bidder.

In the event the low bidder is unable to execute the contract, for whatever reason, within the time provided in the Notice of Award, the city may annul the Notice of Award and the bid deposit may be forfeited and the city shall exercise its legal prerogatives, including, but not limited to, enforcement of its rights as to the bid security or specific performance.

The city reserves the right to accept or reject any and all bids and to waive any technicalities or irregularities therein. Bids may be modified or withdrawn by written request of the bidder received in the office of the city

(continued)

clerk prior to the time and date for bid opening.

From and after the release of this notice, any party intending to bid on the above referenced project, including their officers, employees, agents, or contractors, are specifically prohibited from communicating with any elected or appointed official of the city, directly or indirectly, with regard to the award of the contract for the project listed above, except as specifically authorized by the instructions to bidders. Any such unauthorized communication may result in the automatic disqualification of such bidder.

All bidders agree that rejection shall create no liability on the part of the city because of such rejection, and the filing of any bid in response to this notice shall constitute an agreement of the bidder to these conditions.

If this section is completed, a mandatory pre-bid conference will be held at 1:00 p.m. April 17, 2020, in the Lenexa City Hall Prairie Star Conference Room, 17101 W. 87th St. Pkwy., Lenexa, KS 66219.

Jennifer Martin  
City Clerk

Doc. No. 047984

**State of Kansas**

**Department of Administration  
Office of the Chief Financial Officer**

**Public Notice**

Under requirements of K.S.A. 65-34,117(c), as amended, records of the Office of the Chief Financial Officer show the unobligated balances are \$3,147,175.72 in the Underground Petroleum Storage Tank Release Trust Fund and \$1,394,752.21 in the Aboveground Petroleum Storage Tank Release Trust Fund at March 31, 2020.

Annette Witt, Manager  
Office of the Chief Financial Officer

Doc. No. 048048

**State of Kansas**

**Wichita State University**

**Notice of Intent to Lease Land and/or Building Space**

Public notice is hereby given that Wichita State University (WSU) intends to lease available land and building space. The university will consider leasing such property and/or space to those whose presence on campus would advance the university's applied learning vision or its mission as an educational, cultural, and economic driver for Kansas and the greater public good, or otherwise provide supporting services and amenities to the campus community (such as restaurants, retail establishments, financial institutions, etc.). Because tenant use must be a good fit with the university's educational mission and available space, please be prepared to provide the following information: (1) name; (2) square footage of space needs and desired lease term and location; (3) equipment, design, or other special needs; (4) description of anticipated use; and (5) the anticipated benefits to the university, its students, and the WSU community (e.g. applied learning, joint research, faculty start-up, etc.).

The university will consider serious offers and inquiries from any financially qualified individual, group, organization, or company. If interested, please contact Vice President for Research & Technology Transfer, Dr. John Tomblin, john.tomblin@wichita.edu or Property Manager Crystal Stegeman, crystal.stegeman@wichita.edu. This publication is being published pursuant to K.S.A. 75-430a(d), to the extent applicable.

Crystal Stegeman  
University Property Manager  
Office of the Vice President for  
Administration and Finance  
Wichita State University

Doc. No. 047620

**State of Kansas**

**Wichita State University**

**Notice of Intent to Lease Real Property**

Public notice is hereby given that Wichita State University (WSU) is interested in entering into a long-term ground lease, subject to all required state approvals, for approximately 1.4 acres of property located at 1741 and 1755 N. Hillside. The university is interested in leasing such property to any individual, organization, or entity whose presence on campus would advance the university's applied learning vision or its mission as an educational, cultural, and economic driver for Kansas and the greater public good and providing retail, restaurant, and service centers that would be desirable and beneficial to the international student community. The university intends to lease this property for any period of time up to 65 years, but extended terms and renewal options would be considered. Interested tenants must be willing to provide the university an option to lease back improved office/classroom/lab space up to 11,000 square feet. Interested tenants must be a good fit with the university's educational mission and identify anticipated benefits to the university, its students, and the WSU community (i.e. applied learning, joint research, faculty start-up, WSU curriculum or program support, etc.), and must agree to the essential ground lease terms and restrictive covenants. Interested tenants will be evaluated on: financial stability and strength, proposal terms, demonstrated benefit to WSU and the community, design concepts, and proposed use. Rental rate may be negotiated based on square foot of leased ground or leasable square foot of the building. The university will consider serious offers and inquiries with detailed proposal terms from any financially qualified individual, group, organization, or company and such offers will be considered until a selection is made or this notice is withdrawn. If interested, please contact University Property Manager Crystal Stegeman at crystal.stegeman@wichita.edu. This publication is being published pursuant to K.S.A. 75-430a(d), to the extent applicable.

Crystal Stegeman  
University Property Manager  
Office of the Vice President for  
Finance and Administration  
Wichita State University

Doc. No. 047955

State of Kansas

**Wichita State University**

**Notice of Intent to Lease Real Property**

Public notice is hereby given that Wichita State University (WSU) intends to directly lease, and indirectly sublease through its affiliate corporation Wichita State Innovation Alliance, Inc., subject to all required state approvals, for the private development of one or more partnership buildings. This private development shall be located west of Oliver, between 17th and 18th Streets, on the Wichita State University main campus. The university is interested in leasing such ground to any individual, organization, or entity whose presence on campus would advance the university's applied learning vision or its mission as an educational, cultural, and economic driver for Kansas and the greater public good, and specifically an emphasis on supporting and growing advanced laboratories for research, testing, and innovation in data infrastructure/storage, video surveillance storage, IOT, security, analytics, visualization/modeling, and machine learning/AI. The university intends to lease such ground for any period of time up to sixty-five years, but extended terms and renewal options would be considered. Interested tenants must be willing to be a good fit with the university's educational mission and identify anticipated benefits to the university, its students, and the WSU community (i.e. applied learning, joint research, faculty start-up, WSU curriculum or program support, etc.), and must agree to the essential ground lease terms and restrictive covenants. Interested tenants will be evaluated on: proposal terms, demonstrated benefit to WSU, design concepts, financial stability, and proposed use. Rental rate shall be assessed per leased or leasable square foot of the building but is negotiable based on term of lease and benefit to the university. The university will consider serious offers and inquiries with detailed proposal terms from any financially qualified individual, group, organization, or company and such offers will be considered until a selection is made or this notice is withdrawn. If interested, please contact Associate Vice President for Industry Engagement and Applied Learning, Tonya Witherspoon at [tonya.witherspoon@wichita.edu](mailto:tonya.witherspoon@wichita.edu) or University Property Manager Crystal Stegeman at [crystal.stegeman@wichita.edu](mailto:crystal.stegeman@wichita.edu). This publication is being published pursuant to K.S.A. 75-430a(d), to the extent applicable.

Crystal Stegeman  
 University Property Manager  
 Office of the Vice President for  
 Finance and Administration  
 Wichita State University

Doc. No. 047956

State of Kansas

**Department of Revenue**

**Notice of Available Publications**

Listed below are Private Letter Rulings, Opinion Letters, Final Written Determinations, Revenue Rulings, Notices, Property Valuation Division Directives, Q&A's, and Information Guides published by the Department of

Revenue for March 2020. Copies can be obtained by accessing the Policy Information Library located at [www.ksrevenue.org](http://www.ksrevenue.org) or by calling the Tax Policy Group at 785-296-3081.

**Private Letter Rulings**

No New Publications

**Opinion Letters**

No New Publications

**Final Written Determination**

No New Publications

**Revenue Rulings**

No New Publications

**Notices**

- Notice 20-01      Changes to Filing and Payment Due Dates for Homestead or Property Tax Relief Refund Claims and Individual, Fiduciary and Corporate Income Tax, and Privilege Tax
- Notice 20-02      Waiver of Penalty and Interest for Estimated Tax Payments for Individual and Corporate Income Taxes and Privilege Tax

**Property Valuation Division, Directives**

No New Publications

**Q&A's**

No New Publications

**Information Guides**

No New Publications

Mark A. Burghart  
 Secretary

Doc. No. 048046

State of Kansas

**Office of the Governor**

**Executive Order No. 20-17**

**Temporary relief from certain unemployment insurance requirements in response to the COVID-19 pandemic**

**WHEREAS**, securing the health, safety, and economic well-being of residents of the State of Kansas is this Administration's top priority;

**WHEREAS**, Kansas is facing a crisis—the pandemic and public health emergency of COVID-19—resulting in illness, quarantines, school closures, and temporary closure of businesses resulting in lost wages and financial hardship to Kansas citizens;

**WHEREAS**, the United States Department of Health and Human Services declared a public health emergency for COVID-19 beginning January 27, 2020, with now more than 140,000 cases of the illness and more than 2,500 deaths as a result of the illness across the United States;

**WHEREAS**, the World Health Organization declared a pandemic on March 11, 2020;

**WHEREAS**, a State of Disaster Emergency was proclaimed for the State of Kansas on March 12, 2020;

*(continued)*

**WHEREAS**, on March 13, 2020, the President of the United States declared the ongoing COVID-19 a pandemic of sufficient severity and magnitude to warrant an emergency declaration for all states, tribes, territories, and the District of Columbia pursuant to Section 501(b) of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 5121-5207 (the "Stafford Act");

**WHEREAS**, on March 13, 2020, the President of the United States pursuant to Sections 201 and 301 of the National Emergencies Act, 50 U.S.C. §§ 1601, et seq. and consistent with Section 1135 of the Social Security Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. § 1320b-5), declared a national emergency that the COVID-19 outbreak in the United States constitutes a national emergency beginning March 1, 2020;

**WHEREAS**, as of this date, there have been 368 reported positive cases of COVID-19 in Kansas spread among 37 counties;

**WHEREAS**, the COVID-19 pandemic threatens the stability of local, state, national, and global economies, with the potential to cause layoffs, furloughs, and significant decreases in pay;

**WHEREAS**, the public policy of Kansas, as expressed in K.S.A. 44-702, is that economic insecurity due to unemployment is a serious menace to the health, morals, and welfare of the people of Kansas;

**WHEREAS**, involuntary unemployment of the type occurring because of the COVID-19 pandemic places a serious burden upon not only the unemployed individual but also his or her family and their ongoing wellbeing;

**WHEREAS**, Kansas is committed to maintaining and strengthening access to unemployment insurance during the COVID-19 pandemic in particular because during this time any financial insecurity for those experiencing unemployment can easily and quickly lead to problems maintaining shelter, buying medicine and food, or caring for vulnerable family members, and such problems present additional public health threats to the health care system and to the state's ability to respond to the COVID-19 pandemic;

**WHEREAS**, emergency administrative funding for unemployment insurance, authorized under the Families First Coronavirus Response Act (Pub. L. 116-127) signed into law by the President on March 18, 2020, requires the State to, among other things, mandate that employers provide notice to employees of the potential availability of unemployment insurance benefits and requires Kansas to ease current eligibility restrictions on unemployment benefits, including waiving the one-week waiting period and modifying or suspending work search requirements for those impacted by COVID-19 as a condition of receiving the additional administrative funds;

**WHEREAS**, strict compliance with certain Kansas employment security laws would prevent, hinder, or delay necessary action in coping with the COVID-19 pandemic;

**WHEREAS**, flexibility with the eligibility and certain other requirements of the employment security law would promote and secure the safety and protection of Kansans during the COVID-19 pandemic;

**WHEREAS**, this Administration will do whatever it can to assist Kansans in these challenging times included providing temporary relief from certain unemployment insurance requirements during the COVID-19 pandemic; and

**WHEREAS**, in these challenging times this Administration will do whatever it can to avoid immediate dangers to the health, safety, and welfare of Kansans, including providing greater access to unemployment benefits.

**NOW, THEREFORE**, pursuant to the authority vested in me as Governor of the State of Kansas, including the authority granted me by K.S.A 48-924 and K.S.A 48-925, in order to mitigate the effects of COVID-19 I hereby direct and order the following:

1. All employers operating in Kansas are required to provide notification of the potential availability of unemployment insurance benefits to employees at the time of separation from employment. Such notification shall be in compliance with requirements established by the Secretary of Labor.
2. The waiting week requirement for unemployment benefits, provided for in K.S.A. 44-705(d), is temporarily waived for all claimants.
3. The requirement that claimants for unemployment benefits actively seek work each week, provided for in K.S.A. 44-705(c), is temporarily waived for all claimants.
4. All other laws, regulations, or rules relating to unemployment benefits remain in effect.
5. This order supersedes any contrary order by any local health department regarding unemployment benefits and should be read in conjunction with previous executive orders responding to the COVID-19 pandemic. Any contrary provision in previous orders is superseded by this order.

This document shall be filed with the Secretary of State as Executive Order No. 20-17. It shall become effective immediately and remain in force until rescinded, until May 1, 2020, or until the statewide State of Disaster Emergency proclaimed on March 12, 2020, relating to COVID-19 expires, whichever is earlier. This order may be extended as circumstances dictate.

Dated March 31, 2020.

Laura Kelly  
Governor

Doc. No. 048045

State of Kansas

Secretary of State

Executive Appointments

Executive appointments made by the governor, and in some cases by other state officials, are filed with the secretary of state's office. The following appointments were recently filed with the secretary of state:

Montgomery County Sheriff

**Ron Wade**, 204 E. 6th Ave., Caney, KS 67333. Succeeds Robert Dierks.

**Morton County District Attorney**

**Adam Carey**, 1160 Glenn St., Elkhart, KS 67950.

**Pratt County Clerk**

**Lori Voss**, 414 N. Jackson St., Pratt, KS 67124. Succeeds Sherry Kruse.

**Wabaunsee County Treasurer**

**Karen Callaway**, 13257 Glacier Rd., Maple Hill, KS 66507. Succeeds Linda Coon.

**911 Coordinating Council**

**Brooks Wederski**, 585 N. Franklin Ave., Colby KS67701. Term expires June 30, 2021. Succeeds Michael Albers.

**Accountancy, Kansas State Board of**

**Allison Koehn**, 2615 SW Golf View Dr., Topeka, KS 66614. Term expires July 31, 2022. Succeeds Meredith Armstrong Richey.

**Adult Care Home Administrators, Kansas State Board of**

**Molly Wood**, 900 Massachusetts St., Suite 500, Lawrence, KS 66044. Term expires June 30, 2022. Succeeds Robert Meissner.

**Agricultural Remediation Board, Kansas**

**Kevin Dieckmann**, 14638 S. Kaw Dr., Olathe, KS 66062. Term expires March 16, 2024. Succeeds Larry Shivers.

**Jodi Guetterman**, 12960 W. 239th St., Bucyrus, KS 66013. Term expires March 16, 2023. Succeeds Gary Starr.

**Kamyar Nikoomanesh**, 17855 Bluejacket St., Olathe, KS 66062. Term expires March 16, 2023. Reappointed.

**Barbering, Kansas State Board of**

**Dillon Heter**, 1432 Coventry Manor, Apt. 317, Lawrence, KS 66049. Term expires April 30, 2022. Succeeds John Bradford.

**Court of Appeals Nominating Commission**

**Danielle Dempsey-Swopes**, 6108 SW 39th Cir., Topeka, KS 66610. Term expires January 31, 2024.

**Jonathan Eshnaur**, 1719 N. Ridgeview Rd., Apt. 303, Olathe, KS 66061. Term expires January 31, 2023.

**Michael Fleming**, 12614 Overbrook Rd., Leawood, KS 66209. Term expires January 31, 2022.

**Monique Garcia**, 3540 N. Maize Rd., Apt. 907, Wichita, KS 67205. Term expires January 31, 2023.

**Karen Humphreys**, 1440 N. Gatewood St., Apt. 29, Wichita, KS 67206. Term expires January 31, 2024.

**Richard Marquez**, 1606 Grandview Dr. E, Garden City, KS 67846. Term expires January 31, 2022.

**Donald Noland**, 1032 E. 520th Ave., Pittsburg, KS 66762. Term expires January 31, 2023.

**Linda Parks**, 3934 N. Sweet Bay St., Wichita, KS 67226. Term expires January 31, 2022.

**Dr. Henry Schwaller**, 1500 Vine St., Hays, KS 67601. Term expires January 31, 2024.

**Governmental Ethics Commission, Kansas**

**Patricia Dengler**, 62 E. Norfolk Dr., Eastborough, KS 67206. Term expires January 31, 2022. Succeeds Marisel Walston.

**Human Rights Commission, Kansas**

**Laurel Searles**, 4334 SE Illinois Ave., Topeka, KS 66609. Term expires January 15, 2023. Succeeds Jonathon Westbrook.

**Kansas Guardianship Program Board of Directors**

**Wayne Radford**, 1264 SW Plass Ave., Topeka, KS 66604. Term expires July 1, 2023. Reappointed.

**Peace Officers' Standards and Training, Kansas Commission on**

**Robert Angell**, 3111 N 128th St., Kansas City, KS 66109. Term expires July 1, 2022. Succeeds Richard Powell.

**Physical Therapy Advisory Council**

**Danielle Vequist**, 13205 E. Crestwood St., Wichita, KS 67208. Term expires June 30, 2020. Succeeds Dave Sanderson.

**Sentencing Commission, Kansas**

**Patricia Colloton**, 2513 W. 118th St., Leawood, KS 66211. Succeeds Ron Pauls.

**Mark Dupree**, 710 N. 7th St., Kansas City, KS 66101. Succeeds Dan Dunbar.

**Jessica Glendening**, 814 Silver Rain Rd., Lawrence, KS 66049. Succeeds Stacy Donovan.

**Shelly Williams**, 2705 Saint Christopher Cir., Manhattan, KS 66502. Term expires June 30, 2021. Reappointed.

**Jermaine Wilson**, 1418 S. 15th St., Leavenworth, KS 66048. Term expires June 30, 2021.

**Wather Authority, Kansas**

**Alden Goossen**, 1154 CR 22, Colby, KS 67701. Term expires January 15, 2023. Succeeds Gregg Graff.

**Workers Compensation and Employment Security Boards Nominating Committee**

**Kristi Brown**, 835 SW Topeka Blvd., Topeka, KS 66612. Term expires June 30, 2021. Succeeds Eric Stafford.

Scott Schwab  
Secretary of State

Doc. No. 048046

**State of Kansas****Secretary of State****Notice of Forfeiture**

In accordance with Kansas statutes, the following business entities organized under the laws of Kansas and the foreign business entities authorized to do business in Kansas were forfeited during the month of March 2020 for failure to timely file an annual report and pay the annual report fee.

(continued)

**Please Note:** The following list represents business entities forfeited in March. Any business entity listed may have filed for reinstatement and be considered in good standing. To check the status of a business entity, go to the Kansas Business Center's Business Entity Search State at <https://www.kansas.gov/bess/flow/main?execution=e2s4> (select Business Entity Database) or contact the Business Services Division at 785-296-4564.

### Domestic Business Entities

Arising Faith Worship Center, Inc., Topeka, KS  
 Arkansas City Early Bird Lions Club, Arkansas City, KS  
 Bob Campbell Post No. 1361 Veterans of Foreign Wars of the United, Hutchinson, KS  
 Cars Unlimited, LLC  
 Center Theater, Inc., Smith Center, KS  
 Church of the Nazarene of Columbus, Kansas, Inc., Carthage, MO  
 Clyde Cessna Homestead Society, Salina, KS  
 Col. E. L. Willson Jr. Post Number 2699-Veterans of Foreign Wars of, Marysville, KS  
 Debbie Schmitt, Inc., Great Bend, KS  
 Delta Phi Housing Corp., Osage City, KS  
 Elm Acres Foundation, Inc., Pittsburg, KS  
 Extraordinary Machine Works Corporation, Topeka, KS  
 Fawnkey and Associates, LLC, Westlake Village, CA  
 First Robotics Team 1810 Booster Club, Shawnee, KS  
 Forum Theatre Company Wichita, Wichita, KS  
 Healthsim United, Inc., Wichita, KS  
 Heartland Hill Network of Schools, Inc., Parsons, KS  
 Hell Creek Ranch, Inc., El Dorado Springs, MO  
 Heskett Farms, Inc., Hoxie, KS  
 Home Builders Association of Hutchinson, Hutchinson, KS  
 I.B. Blackburn Lodge #78, Inc., Kansas City, KS  
 Iglesia Cristiana El Camino, Inc., Wichita, KS  
 Kansas Association of Interpreters-Registry of Interpreters for, Kansas City, KS  
 Kansas City Arts Academy, Inc., Shawnee, KS  
 Kansas City Society of Pathologists, Kansas City, MO  
 L.A. Transport Corp., Homestead Fld  
 Lazy J-4 Cattle Co., Dighton, KS  
 Lighthouse for Freedom, Inc., Herington, KS  
 Mercy Health Foundation Fort Scott, Chesterfield, MO  
 National Baptist Convention, Inc., Kansas City, KS  
 Newton Ministerial Alliance, Inc., Newton, KS  
 Ninja Sushi Teppanyaki Bar, Inc., Garden City, KS  
 Northstar Benefits, Inc., Overland Park, KS  
 Olathe North Swim & Dive Booster Club, Olathe, KS  
 Pastor of Faith Fellowship Church, Kansas City, KS  
 Pearson Productions, Inc., Spring Hill, KS  
 Performing Arts for Children, Inc., Topeka, KS  
 Proffitt Auto Repair, LLC, Wichita, KS  
 Psu Pi Kappa Alpha, Inc., Raymore, MO  
 Quisenberry Furniture and Funeral Home, Inc., Tonganoxie, KS  
 Remington 206 Booster Club, Inc., Whitewater, KS  
 Riverbend International School Foundation, Atchison, KS  
 Sherry's House Foundation, Columbus, KS  
 SMNW Drill Team Boosters, Inc., Shawnee, KS  
 Society of Joseph, Saint Marys, KS  
 Softball Strong, LLC, Long Beach, CA  
 Strive, Inc., Wichita, KS  
 The Coalition: Ict Foundation, Wichita, KS  
 The Coffeyville Community College Foundation, Coffeyville, KS  
 The Craneware Cares Foundation, Overland Park, KS  
 The Kansas City, Kansas Rotary Presidents' Foundation, Kansas City, KS  
 The Ridge Community Church, Shawnee, KS  
 Trustees of the First Christian Church of Sedan, Kansas, Sedan, KS  
 UPA Transport, LLC, Ulysses, KS  
 V. Lindsay Alumni Association, Kansas City, KS  
 Valley Ag, Inc., A Close Corporation, Valley Falls, KS

### Foreign Business Entities

American Occupational Health Management, Inc., Brentwood, TN  
 Community of Christ Independence, MO

Dugmar Electric Company, Inc., Freeman, MO  
 Golftec Franchise Services, Inc., Englewood, CO  
 Insulpro, Inc., Tampa, FL  
 M.E. Collins Contracting Company, Inc., Wahoo, NE  
 Marketing Partners, L.L.C., Dorchester, NE  
 Micron Semiconductor Products, Inc., Boise, ID  
 Rosser International, Inc., Atlanta, GA  
 Selig Leasing Company, Inc., Topeka, KS  
 Silver Creek Oil & Gas, LLC, Irving, TX  
 Sojourner Drilling Corporation, Abilene, TX  
 St. Joseph's Female Ursuline Academy, Maple Mount, KY  
 Superior Vend All, Inc., Kansas City, MO

Scott Schwab  
 Secretary of State

Doc. No. 048050

### State of Kansas

### Secretary of State

### Certification of New State Laws

I, Scott Schwab, Secretary of State of the State of Kansas, do hereby certify that the following bill is a correct copy of the original enrolled bill now on file in my office.

Scott Schwab  
 Secretary of State

(Published in the Kansas Register April 9, 2020.)

### House Bill No. 2168

AN ACT concerning health provider assessments; relating to the hospital provider assessment and the quality care assessment; increasing the rate and expanding the base of the hospital provider assessment; amending membership on the healthcare access improvement panel; extending the quality care assessment; amending K.S.A. 65-6208, 65-6218 and 75-7435 and repealing the existing sections.

*Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Kansas:*

Section 1. K.S.A. 65-6208 is hereby amended to read as follows: 65-6208. (a) Subject to the provisions of K.S.A. 65-6209, and amendments thereto, an annual assessment on ~~inpatient~~ services is imposed on each hospital provider in an amount equal to ~~1.83%~~ 3% of each hospital's net inpatient *and outpatient* operating revenue for the hospital's fiscal year ~~2010 three years prior to the assessment year~~. In the event that a hospital does not have a complete ~~twelve-month~~ 2010 12-month fiscal year in such *third prior fiscal year*, the assessment under this section shall be \$200,000 until such date that such hospital has completed the hospital's first ~~twelve-month~~ 12-month fiscal year. Upon completing such first twelve-month fiscal year, such hospital's assessment under this section shall be the amount equal to ~~1.83%~~ 3% of such hospital's net operating revenue for such first completed ~~twelve-month~~ 12-month fiscal year.

(b) Nothing in this act shall be construed to authorize any home rule unit or other unit of local government to license for revenue or impose a tax or assessment upon hospital providers or a tax or assessment measured by the income or earnings of a hospital provider.

(c) (1) *The department of health and environment shall submit to the United States centers for medicare and medicaid services any approval request necessary to implement the amendments made to subsection (a) by this act. If the department has submitted such a request pursuant to section 80(1) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, then the department may continue such request, or modify such request to conform to the amendments made to subsection (a) by this act, to fulfill the requirements of this paragraph.*

(2) *The secretary of health and environment shall certify to the secretary of state the receipt of such approval and cause notice of such approval to be published in the Kansas register.*

(3) *The amendments made to subsection (a) by this act shall take effect on and after January 1 or July 1 immediately following such publication of such approval.*

Sec. 2. K.S.A. 65-6218 is hereby amended to read as follows: 65-6218. (a) (1) Assessment revenues generated from the hospital provider assessments shall be disbursed as follows:

~~(1)(A) Not less than 80% of assessment revenues shall be disbursed to hospital providers through a combination of medicaid access improvement payments and increased medicaid rates on designated diagnostic related groupings, procedures or codes;~~

~~(2)(B) not more than 20% of assessment revenues shall be disbursed to providers who are persons licensed to practice medicine and surgery or dentistry through increased medicaid rates on designated procedures and codes; and~~

~~(3)(C) not more than 3.2% of hospital provider assessment revenues shall be used to fund healthcare access improvement programs in undergraduate, graduate or continuing medical education, including the medical student loan act.~~

~~(b) Assessment revenues generated from the health maintenance organization assessment shall be disbursed as follows:~~

~~(1) Not less than 53% of health maintenance organization assessment revenues shall be disbursed to health maintenance organizations that have a contract with the department through increased medicaid capitation payments;~~

~~(2) not more than 30% of health maintenance organization assessment revenues shall be disbursed to fund activities to increase access to dental care, primary care safety net clinics, increased medicaid rates on designated procedures and codes for providers who are persons licensed to practice dentistry, and home and community-based services;~~

~~(3) not more than 17% of health maintenance organization assessment revenues shall be disbursed to pharmacy providers through increased medicaid rates.~~

~~(2) On July 1 of each year, the department of health and environment, with approval of the healthcare access improvement panel, shall make adjustments to the disbursement of moneys in accordance with this subsection to cause such disbursements to be paid solely from moneys appropriated from the healthcare access improvement fund. The healthcare access improvement fund shall not be supplemented by appropriations from the state general fund for the purpose of making disbursements under this subsection.~~

~~(c)(b) For the purposes of administering and selecting the disbursements described in subsections (a) and (b) of this section, the healthcare access improvement panel is hereby established. The panel shall consist of the following: Three members appointed by the Kansas hospital association, two members who are persons licensed to practice medicine and surgery appointed by the Kansas medical society, one member appointed by each health maintenance organization that has a medicaid managed care contract with the Kansas department for aging and disability services of health and environment, one member appointed by the community care network of Kansas association for the medically underserved, one member appointed by the president of the senate, one member appointed by the speaker of the house of representatives, one member from the office of the medicaid inspector general appointed by the attorney general and one representative of the department of health and environment appointed by the governor. The panel shall meet as soon as possible subsequent to the effective date of this act and shall elect a chairperson from among the members appointed by the Kansas hospital association. A representative of the panel shall be required to make an annual report to the legislature regarding the collection and distribution of all funds received and distributed under this act, and such report shall include analysis demonstrating that disbursements made in accordance with subsection (a) are budget neutral to the state general fund.~~

~~(c) (1) The department of health and environment shall submit to the United States centers for medicare and medicaid services any approval request necessary to implement the amendments made to this section by this act. If the department has submitted such a request pursuant to section 80(1) of chapter 68 of the 2019 Session Laws of Kansas, then the department may continue such request, or modify such request to conform to the amendments made to subsections (a) and (b) by this act, to fulfill the requirements of this paragraph.~~

~~(2) The secretary of health and environment shall certify to the secretary of state the receipt of such approval and cause notice of such approval to be published in the Kansas register.~~

~~(3) The amendments made to subsections (a) and (b) by this act shall take effect on and after January 1 or July 1 immediately following such publication of such approval.~~

Sec. 3. K.S.A. 75-7435 is hereby amended to read as follows: 75-7435. (a) As used in this section unless the context requires otherwise:

(1) Words and phrases have the meanings respectively ascribed thereto mean the same as defined by K.S.A. 39-923, and amendments thereto.

(2) "Skilled nursing care facility" means a licensed nursing facility, nursing facility for mental health as defined in K.S.A. 39-923, and amendments thereto, or a hospital long-term care unit licensed by the department of health and environment, providing skilled nursing care, but shall not include the Kansas soldiers' home or the Kansas veterans' home.

(3) "Licensed bed" means those beds within a skilled nursing care facility which that the facility is licensed to operate.

(4) "Agent" means the Kansas department for aging and disability services.

(5) "Continuing care retirement facility" means a facility holding a certificate of registration issued by the commissioner of insurance pursuant to K.S.A. 40-2235, and amendments thereto.

(b) (1) Except as otherwise provided in this section ~~and in subsection (f)~~, there is hereby imposed and the secretary of health and environment shall assess an annual assessment per licensed bed, hereinafter called a quality care assessment, on each skilled nursing care facility. The assessment on all facilities in the aggregate shall be an amount fixed by rules and regulations of the secretary of health and environment, shall not exceed \$4,908 annually per licensed bed, shall be imposed as an amount per licensed bed and shall be imposed uniformly on all skilled nursing care facilities except that the assessment rate for skilled nursing care facilities that are part of a continuing care retirement facility, small skilled nursing care facilities and high medicaid volume skilled nursing care facilities shall not exceed 1% of the actual amount assessed all other skilled nursing care facilities. No rules and regulations of the secretary of health and environment shall grant any exception to or exemption from the quality care assessment. The assessment shall be paid quarterly, with one fourth of the annual amount due by the 30th day after the end of the month of each calendar quarter. The secretary of health and environment is authorized to establish delayed payment schedules for skilled nursing care facilities which that are unable to make quarterly payments when due under this section due to financial difficulties, as determined by the secretary of health and environment. As used in this paragraph, the terms "small skilled nursing care facilities" and "high medicaid volume skilled nursing care facilities" shall have the meanings ascribed thereto be defined by the secretary of health and environment by rules and regulations, except that the definition of "small skilled nursing care facility" shall not be lower fewer than 40 beds.

(2) Beds licensed after July 1 each year shall pay a prorated amount of the applicable annual assessment so that the assessment applies only for the days such new beds are licensed. The proration shall be calculated by multiplying the applicable assessment by the percentage of days the beds are licensed during the year. Any change which that reduces the number of licensed beds in a facility shall not result in a refund being issued to the skilled nursing care facility.

(3) If an entity conducts, operates or maintains more than one licensed skilled nursing care facility, the entity shall pay the nursing facility assessment for each facility separately. No skilled nursing care facility shall create a separate line-item charge for the purpose of passing through the quality care assessment to residents. No skilled nursing care facility shall be guaranteed, expressly or otherwise, that any additional moneys paid to the facility under this section will equal or exceed the amount of its quality care assessment.

(4) The payment of the quality care assessment to the secretary of health and environment shall be an allowable cost for medicaid reimbursement purposes. A rate adjustment pursuant to subsection (d)(5) shall be made effective on the date of imposition of the assessment, to reimburse the portion of this cost imposed on medicaid days.

(5) The secretary of health and environment shall seek a waiver from the United States department of health and human services to allow the state to impose varying levels of assessments on skilled nursing care facilities based on specified criteria. It is the intent of the legislature that the waiver sought by the secretary of health and environment be structured to minimize the negative fiscal impact on certain classes of skilled nursing care facilities.

(c) Each skilled nursing care facility shall prepare and submit to the secretary of health and environment any additional information required and requested by the secretary of health and environment to implement or administer the provisions of this section. Each skilled nursing care facility shall prepare and submit quarterly to the secretary for aging and disability services the rate the facility charges to private pay residents, and the secretary shall cause this information to be posted on the web site of the department for aging and disability services.

(continued)

(d) (1) There is hereby created in the state treasury the quality care fund, ~~which shall~~ to be administered by the secretary of health and environment. All moneys received for the assessments imposed pursuant to subsection (b), including any penalty assessments imposed thereon pursuant to subsection (e), shall be remitted to the state treasurer in accordance with K.S.A. 75-4215, and amendments thereto. Upon receipt of each such remittance, the state treasurer shall deposit the entire amount in the state treasury to the credit of the quality care fund. All expenditures from the quality care fund shall be made in accordance with appropriation acts upon warrants of the director of accounts and reports issued pursuant to vouchers approved by the secretary of health and environment or the secretary's agent.

(2) All moneys in the quality care fund shall be used to finance initiatives to maintain or improve the quantity and quality of skilled nursing care in skilled nursing care facilities in Kansas. No moneys credited to the quality care fund shall be transferred to or otherwise revert to the state general fund at any time. Notwithstanding the provisions of any other law to the contrary, if any moneys credited to the quality care fund are transferred or otherwise revert to the state general fund, 30 days following the transfer or reversion the quality care assessment shall terminate and the secretary of health and environment shall discontinue the imposition, assessment and collection of the assessment. Upon termination of the assessment, all collected assessment revenues, including the moneys inappropriately transferred or reverting to the state general fund, less any amounts expended by the secretary of health and environment, shall be returned on a pro rata basis to skilled nursing care facilities that paid the assessment.

(3) Any moneys received by the state of Kansas from the federal government as a result of federal financial participation in the state medicaid program that are derived from the quality care assessment shall be deposited in the quality care fund and used to finance actions to maintain or increase healthcare in skilled nursing care facilities.

(4) Moneys in the fund shall be used exclusively for the following purposes:

(A) To pay administrative expenses incurred by the secretary of health and environment or the agent in performing the activities authorized by this section, except that such expenses shall not exceed a total of 1% of the aggregate assessment funds collected pursuant to subsection (b) for the prior fiscal year;

(B) to increase nursing facility payments to fund covered services to medicaid beneficiaries within medicare upper payment limits, as may be negotiated;

(C) to reimburse the medicaid share of the quality care assessment as a pass-through medicaid allowable cost;

(D) to restore the medicaid rate reductions implemented January 1, 2010;

(E) to restore funding for fiscal year 2010, including rebasing and inflation to be applied to rates in fiscal year 2011; and

(F) the remaining amount, if any, shall be expended first to increase the direct health care costs center limitation up to 150% of the case mix adjusted median, and then, if there are remaining amounts, for other quality care enhancement of skilled nursing care facilities as approved by the quality care improvement panel but shall not be used directly or indirectly to replace existing state expenditures for payments to skilled nursing care facilities for providing services pursuant to the state medicaid program.

(5) Any moneys received by a skilled nursing care facility from the quality care fund shall not be expended by any skilled nursing care facility to provide for bonuses or profit-sharing for any officer, employee or parent corporation but may be used to pay to employees who are providing direct care to a resident of such facility.

(6) Adjustment payments may be paid quarterly or within the daily medicaid rate to reimburse covered medicaid expenditures in the aggregate within the upper payment limits.

(7) On or before the 10th day of each month, the director of accounts and reports shall transfer from the state general fund to the quality care fund interest earnings based on:

(A) The average daily balance of moneys in the quality care fund for the preceding month; and

(B) the net earnings rate of the pooled money investment portfolio for the preceding month.

(e) If a skilled nursing care facility fails to pay the full amount of the quality care assessment imposed pursuant to subsection (b), when due and payable, including any extensions of time granted under that subsection, the secretary of health and environment shall assess a penalty in the amount of the lesser of \$500 per day or 2% of the qual-

ity care assessment owed for each day the assessment is delinquent. The secretary of health and environment is authorized to establish delayed payment schedules for skilled nursing care facilities that are unable to make installment payments when due under this section because of financial difficulties, as determined by the secretary of health and environment.

(f) (1) The secretary of health and environment shall assess and collect quality care assessments imposed pursuant to subsection (b), including any penalty assessments imposed thereon pursuant to subsection (e), from skilled nursing care facilities on and after July 1, 2010, except that no assessments or penalties shall be assessed under subsections (a) through (h) until:

(A) An amendment to the state plan for medicaid, ~~which that~~ increases the rates of payments made to skilled nursing care facilities for providing services pursuant to the federal medicaid program and ~~which that~~ is proposed for approval for purposes of subsections (a) through (h) is approved by the federal government, in which case the initial assessment is due ~~to~~ not earlier than 60 days after state plan approval; and

(B) the skilled nursing care facilities have been compensated retroactively within 60 days after state plan approval at the increased rate for services provided pursuant to the federal medicaid program for the period commencing on and after July 1, 2010.

(2) The secretary of health and environment shall implement and administer the provisions of subsections (a) through (h) in a manner consistent with applicable federal medicaid laws and regulations. The secretary of health and environment shall seek any necessary approvals by the federal government that are required for the implementation of subsections (a) through (h).

(3) The provisions of subsections (a) through (h) shall be null and void and shall have no force and effect if one of the following occur:

(A) The medicaid plan amendment, ~~which that~~ increases the rates of payments made to skilled nursing care facilities for providing services pursuant to the federal medicaid program and ~~which that~~ is proposed for approval for purposes of subsections (a) through (h) is not approved by the ~~federal~~ United States centers for medicare and medicaid services;

(B) the rates of payments made to skilled nursing care facilities for providing services pursuant to the federal medicaid program are reduced below the rates calculated on December 31, 2009, increased by revenues in the quality care fund and matched by federal financial participation and rebasing as provided for in K.S.A. 75-5958, and amendments thereto;

(C) any funds are utilized to supplant funding for skilled nursing care facilities as required by subsection (g);

(D) any funds are diverted from those purposes set forth in subsection (d)(4); or

(E) upon the governor signing, or allowing to become law without signature, legislation ~~which that~~, by proviso or otherwise, directs any funds from those purposes set forth in subsection (d)(4) or ~~which that~~ would propose to suspend the operation of this section.

(g) On and after July 1, 2010, reimbursement rates for skilled nursing care facilities shall be restored to those in effect during December 2009. No funds generated by the assessments or federal funds generated therefrom shall be utilized for such restoration, but such funds may be used to restore the rate reduction in effect from January 1, 2010, to June 30, 2010.

(h) Rates of reimbursement shall not be limited by private pay charges.

(i) If the provisions of subsections (a) through (h) are repealed, expire or become null and void and have no further force and effect, all moneys in the quality care fund ~~which that~~ were paid under the provisions of subsections (a) through (h) shall be returned to the skilled nursing care facilities ~~which that~~ paid such moneys on the basis on which such payments were assessed and paid pursuant to subsections (a) through (h).

(j) The department of health and environment may adopt rules and regulations necessary to implement the provisions of this section.

(k) For purposes of administering and selecting the reimbursements of moneys in the quality care assessment fund, the quality care improvement panel is hereby established. The panel shall consist of the following members: Two persons appointed by leadingage Kansas; two persons appointed by the Kansas health care association; one person appointed by Kansas advocates for better care; one person appointed by the Kansas hospital association; one person appointed by the governor who is a member of the Kansas adult care executives association;

one person appointed by the governor who is a skilled nursing care facility resident or the family member of such a resident; one person appointed by the Kansas foundation for medical care; one person appointed by the governor from the department for aging and disability services; one person appointed by the governor from the department of health and environment; one person appointed by the president of the senate who is affiliated with an organization representing and advocating the interests of retired persons in Kansas; and one person appointed by the speaker of the house of representatives who is a volunteer with the office of the state long-term care ombudsman established by the long-term care ombudsman act. The person appointed by the governor from the department for aging and disability services and the person appointed by the governor from the department of health and environment shall be nonvoting members of the panel. The panel shall meet as soon as possible subsequent to the effective date of this act and shall elect a chairperson from among the members appointed by the trade organizations specified in this subsection. The members of the quality care improvement panel shall serve without compensation or expenses.

The quality care improvement panel shall report annually on or before January 10 to the senate committees on public health and welfare and ways and means, the house committees on appropriations and health and human services and the Robert G. (Bob) Bethell joint committee on home and community based services and KanCare oversight concerning the progress to reduce the incidence of antipsychotic drug use in elders with dementia, participation in the nursing facility quality and efficiency outcome incentive factor, participation in the culture change and person-centered care incentive program, annual resident satisfaction ratings for Kansas skilled nursing care facilities and the activities of the panel during the preceding calendar year and any recommendations ~~which~~ that the panel may have concerning the administration of and expenditures from the quality care assessment fund.

(l) The provisions of this section shall expire on July 1, ~~2020~~ 2030.

Sec. 4. K.S.A. 65-6208, 65-6218 and 75-7435 are hereby repealed.

Sec. 5. This act shall take effect and be in force from and after its publication in the Kansas register.

**INDEX TO ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS**

This index lists in numerical order the new, amended, and revoked administrative regulations and the volume and page number of the *Kansas Register* issue in which more information can be found. Temporary regulations are designated with a (T) in the Action column. This cumulative index supplements the 2009 Volumes of the *Kansas Administrative Regulations* and the 2019 Supplement of the *Kansas Administrative Regulations*. Regulations can also be found at [http://www.sos.ks.gov/pubs/pubs\\_kar.aspx](http://www.sos.ks.gov/pubs/pubs_kar.aspx).

**AGENCY 4: DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
4-34-1	New	V. 38, p. 57
4-34-2	New	V. 38, p. 58
4-34-3	New	V. 38, p. 58
4-34-4	New	V. 38, p. 59
4-34-5	New	V. 38, p. 59
4-34-6	New	V. 38, p. 61
4-34-7	New	V. 38, p. 62
4-34-8	New	V. 38, p. 62
4-34-9	New	V. 38, p. 63
4-34-10	New	V. 38, p. 64
4-34-11	New	V. 38, p. 64
4-34-12	New	V. 38, p. 64
4-34-13	New	V. 38, p. 65
4-34-14	New	V. 38, p. 65
4-34-15	New	V. 38, p. 66
4-34-16	New	V. 38, p. 66
4-34-17	New	V. 38, p. 67
4-34-18	New	V. 38, p. 67
4-34-19	New	V. 38, p. 68
4-34-20	New	V. 38, p. 68
4-34-21	New	V. 38, p. 70

**AGENCY 5: DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE—DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
5-21-7	Revoked	V. 38, p. 1296
5-25-2	Amended	V. 38, p. 1296
5-25-4	Amended	V. 38, p. 1296

5-25-22 New V. 38, p. 1297

**AGENCY 7: SECRETARY OF STATE**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
7-47-1	New (T)	V. 38, p. 855
7-47-1	New	V. 38, p. 1113

**AGENCY 9: DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE—DIVISION OF ANIMAL HEALTH**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
9-18-6	Amended	V. 38, p. 55
9-18-9	Amended	V. 38, p. 56
9-18-23	New	V. 38, p. 1407
9-18-28	Amended	V. 38, p. 56
9-23-1	Revoked	V. 38, p. 1408
9-23-2	Revoked	V. 38, p. 1408
9-23-3	Revoked	V. 38, p. 1408

**AGENCY 10: KANSAS BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
10-22-1	Amended	V. 38, p. 1089
10-23-1	New	V. 38, p. 773
10-23-2	New	V. 38, p. 773
10-23-3	New	V. 38, p. 773
10-23-4	New	V. 38, p. 773
10-23-5	New	V. 38, p. 773
10-23-6	New	V. 38, p. 773

**AGENCY 14: DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE—DIVISION OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
14-6-4	Revoked (T)	V. 38, p. 856
14-6-4	Revoked	V. 38, p. 1203

**AGENCY 16: ATTORNEY GENERAL**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
16-18-1	New	V. 38, p. 856
16-18-2	New	V. 38, p. 856
16-18-3	New	V. 38, p. 857
16-19-1	New	V. 39, p. 208
16-19-2	New	V. 39, p. 208
16-19-3	New	V. 39, p. 208
16-20-1	New (T)	V. 39, p. 462

**AGENCY 17: OFFICE OF THE STATE BANK COMMISSIONER**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
17-23-9	Revoked	V. 39, p. 146

**AGENCY 28: DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
28-1-20	Amended	V. 38, p. 924
28-4-133	New	V. 38, p. 1434
28-15-52	Amended	V. 39, p. 171
28-15-53	Amended	V. 39, p. 171
28-24-1	Amended	V. 39, p. 336
28-24-2	Amended	V. 39, p. 336
28-24-3	Amended	V. 39, p. 336
28-24-4	Amended	V. 39, p. 337
28-24-5	Amended	V. 39, p. 337
28-24-6	Amended	V. 39, p. 337
28-24-7	Amended	V. 39, p. 337
28-24-8	Amended	V. 39, p. 337
28-24-9	Amended	V. 39, p. 337
28-24-10	Amended	V. 39, p. 338
28-24-11	Amended	V. 39, p. 338
28-24-12	Amended	V. 39, p. 338
28-24-13	Amended	V. 39, p. 339
28-24-14	Amended	V. 39, p. 339
28-35-146a	Amended	V. 38, p. 130
28-35-147a	Amended	V. 38, p. 130
28-55-1	Revoked	V. 38, p. 1024
28-55-2	Revoked	V. 38, p. 1024
28-55-3	Revoked	V. 38, p. 1025
28-55-4	Revoked	V. 38, p. 1025
28-55-5	Revoked	V. 38, p. 1025

**AGENCY 30: KANSAS DEPARTMENT FOR CHILDREN AND FAMILIES**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
30-4-34	Amended	V. 38, p. 403
30-4-35	Amended	V. 38, p. 403
30-4-36	Amended	V. 38, p. 403
30-4-40	Amended	V. 38, p. 403
30-4-41	Amended	V. 38, p. 404
30-4-50	Amended	V. 38, p. 404
30-4-51	Amended	V. 38, p. 405
30-4-54	Amended	V. 38, p. 405
30-4-64	Amended	V. 38, p. 406
30-4-90	Revoked	V. 38, p. 407
30-4-98	Amended	V. 38, p. 407
30-4-100	Amended	V. 38, p. 407
30-4-107	Amended	V. 38, p. 408
30-4-109	Amended	V. 38, p. 408
30-4-111	Amended	V. 38, p. 409
30-4-113	Amended	V. 38, p. 409
30-4-120	Revoked	V. 38, p. 410
30-4-130	Amended	V. 38, p. 410
30-4-140	Amended	V. 38, p. 412

30-46-10	Amended	V. 38, p. 128
30-46-13	Amended	V. 38, p. 128
30-46-15	Amended	V. 38, p. 129
30-46-17	Amended	V. 38, p. 129

**AGENCY 47: DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT—MINED-LAND CONSERVATION AND RECLAMATION**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
47-2-75	Amended	V. 38, p. 84
47-3-1	Amended	V. 38, p. 86
47-3-2	Amended	V. 38, p. 86
47-3-42	Amended	V. 38, p. 86
47-5-5a	Amended	V. 38, p. 90
47-6-1	Amended	V. 38, p. 93
47-6-2	Amended	V. 38, p. 93
47-6-3	Amended	V. 38, p. 94
47-6-4	Amended	V. 38, p. 94
47-6-6	Amended	V. 38, p. 94
47-6-8	Amended	V. 38, p. 94
47-6-9	Amended	V. 38, p. 95
47-6-10	Amended	V. 38, p. 95
47-6-11	Amended	V. 38, p. 95
47-7-2	Amended	V. 38, p. 96
47-8-9	Amended	V. 38, p. 96
47-9-1	Amended	V. 38, p. 97
47-9-4	Amended	V. 38, p. 103
47-10-1	Amended	V. 38, p. 103
47-11-8	Amended	V. 38, p. 105
47-12-4	Amended	V. 38, p. 105
47-13-4	Amended	V. 38, p. 106
47-14-7	Amended	V. 38, p. 107
47-15-1a	Amended	V. 38, p. 107
47-16-6	Amended	V. 38, p. 108
47-16-9	Amended	V. 38, p. 108
47-16-10	Amended	V. 38, p. 108
47-16-12	Amended	V. 38, p. 109
47-16-13	New	V. 38, p. 109

**AGENCY 51: DEPARTMENT OF LABOR—DIVISION OF WORKERS COMPENSATION**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
51-9-7	Amended	V. 38, p. 231
51-9-17	Amended	V. 38, p. 212

**AGENCY 60: BOARD OF NURSING**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
60-4-101	Amended	V. 38, p. 545
60-16-101	Amended	V. 39, p. 12
60-16-103	Amended	V. 39, p. 12
60-16-104	Amended	V. 39, p. 13

**AGENCY 63: BOARD OF MORTUARY ARTS**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
63-5-3	New	V. 38, p. 183

**AGENCY 66: BOARD OF TECHNICAL PROFESSIONS**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
66-7-4	New	V. 38, p. 989
66-9-7	Amended	V. 38, p. 622
66-10-1	Amended	V. 38, p. 622
66-10-3	Amended	V. 38, p. 622
66-15-1	New	V. 39, p. 14

**AGENCY 67: BOARD OF EXAMINERS IN FITTING AND DISPENSING OF HEARING INSTRUMENTS**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
67-1-8	New	V. 38, p. 1489
67-2-4	Amended	V. 38, p. 1489

67-5-5	Amended	V. 38, p. 1490
--------	---------	----------------

**AGENCY 68: BOARD OF PHARMACY**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
68-2-5	Amended	V. 39, p. 105
68-2-10	Amended	V. 38, p. 1463
68-5-16	Amended	V. 39, p. 106
68-7-15	Amended	V. 38, p. 1337
68-11-1	Amended	V. 38, p. 541
68-11-2	Amended	V. 38, p. 541
68-14-1	Revoked	V. 38, p. 1463
68-14-2	Amended	V. 38, p. 1463
68-14-3	Revoked	V. 38, p. 1464
68-14-4	Amended	V. 38, p. 1464
68-14-5	Amended	V. 38, p. 1464
68-14-7	Amended	V. 38, p. 1464
68-14-7a	New	V. 38, p. 1466
68-14-7b	New	V. 38, p. 1468
68-19-1	Amended	V. 38, p. 1337
68-21-6	Amended	V. 38, p. 1338

**AGENCY 69: BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
69-1-10	New	V. 38, p. 84

**AGENCY 71: BOARD OF REGENTS**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
71-2-2	Amended	V. 38, p. 1405
71-2-3	Revoked	V. 38, p. 1406
71-5-11	Amended	V. 38, p. 1406
71-8-8	Amended	V. 38, p. 1407

**AGENCY 74: BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
74-1-3	Amended	V. 38, p. 1337

**AGENCY 82: STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
82-4-1	Amended	V. 38, p. 875
82-4-2a	Amended	V. 38, p. 876
82-4-3b	Amended	V. 38, p. 876
82-4-3c	Amended	V. 38, p. 877
82-4-3d	Amended	V. 38, p. 878
82-4-3f	Amended	V. 38, p. 879
82-4-3g	Amended	V. 38, p. 882
82-4-3h	Amended	V. 38, p. 885
82-4-3i	Amended	V. 38, p. 886
82-4-3j	Amended	V. 38, p. 888
82-4-3k	Amended	V. 38, p. 888
82-4-3l	Amended	V. 38, p. 889
82-4-3m	Amended	V. 38, p. 891
82-4-3n	Amended	V. 38, p. 891
82-4-3o	Amended	V. 38, p. 892
82-4-20	Amended	V. 38, p. 892
82-4-21	Amended	V. 38, p. 893
82-4-22	Amended	V. 38, p. 893
82-4-24a	Amended	V. 38, p. 893
82-4-27	Amended	V. 38, p. 893
82-4-30a	Amended	V. 38, p. 894
82-4-40	Revoked	V. 38, p. 894
82-4-42	Amended	V. 38, p. 894
82-4-44	Revoked	V. 38, p. 894
82-4-46	Revoked	V. 38, p. 894
82-4-48	Amended	V. 38, p. 894
82-4-48a	Revoked	V. 38, p. 895
82-4-50	Amended	V. 38, p. 895
82-4-51	Amended	V. 38, p. 895
82-4-53	Amended	V. 38, p. 895
82-4-56a	Amended	V. 38, p. 895
82-4-57	Amended	V. 38, p. 896
82-4-58d	Amended	V. 38, p. 896
82-4-63	Amended	V. 38, p. 896
82-4-65	Amended	V. 38, p. 896

82-4-66	Revoked	V. 38, p. 897
82-4-68	Amended	V. 38, p. 897
82-4-85	Amended	V. 38, p. 897
82-4-86	Revoked	V. 38, p. 898

**AGENCY 86: REAL ESTATE COMMISSION**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
86-1-10	Amended	V. 39, p. 54
86-1-11	Amended (T)	V. 38, p. 855
86-1-11	Amended	V. 39, p. 55
86-1-12	Amended	V. 39, p. 56
86-1-13	Revoked	V. 39, p. 56
86-1-16	Revoked	V. 39, p. 56
86-1-17	Amended	V. 39, p. 56
86-1-18	Revoked	V. 39, p. 56
86-3-6a	Revoked	V. 39, p. 56
86-3-7	Amended	V. 39, p. 56
86-3-20	Revoked	V. 39, p. 57

**AGENCY 88: BOARD OF REGENTS**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
88-28-6	Amended	V. 38, p. 1435

**AGENCY 92: DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
92-19-56	Revoked	V. 38, p. 1470
92-56-2	Amended	V. 38, p. 1196

**AGENCY 100: BOARD OF HEALING ARTS**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
100-11-1	Amended	V. 38, p. 344
100-28a-14	Amended	V. 38, p. 184
100-28b-1	New	V. 38, p. 1490
100-28b-5	New	V. 38, p. 1491
100-28b-15	New	V. 38, p. 1491
100-28b-16	New	V. 38, p. 1491
100-28b-17	New	V. 38, p. 1491
100-28b-18	New	V. 38, p. 1491
100-29-4	Amended	V. 38, p. 1492
100-29-9	Amended	V. 38, p. 1492
100-69-7	Amended	V. 38, p. 1493
100-69-10	Amended	V. 38, p. 1494
100-76-2	Amended	V. 38, p. 184
100-77-1	New (T)	V. 38, p. 8
100-77-1	New	V. 38, p. 447
100-77-2	New (T)	V. 38, p. 8
100-77-2	New	V. 38, p. 448
100-77-3	New (T)	V. 38, p. 8
100-77-3	New	V. 38, p. 448
100-78-1	New (T)	V. 39, p. 250
100-78-2	New (T)	V. 39, p. 250

**AGENCY 102: BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES REGULATORY BOARD**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
102-1-13	Amended	V. 38, p. 185
102-1-18	Amended	V. 38, p. 212
102-2-3	Amended	V. 38, p. 185
102-2-14	Amended	V. 38, p. 212
102-3-2	Amended	V. 38, p. 185
102-3-15	Amended	V. 38, p. 212
102-4-2	Amended	V. 38, p. 186
102-4-15	Amended	V. 38, p. 212
102-5-2	Amended	V. 38, p. 186
102-5-14	Amended	V. 38, p. 212
102-7-2	Amended	V. 38, p. 186
102-7-12	Amended	V. 38, p. 212

**AGENCY 105: BOARD OF INDIGENTS' DEFENSE SERVICES**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
105-5-2	Amended	V. 39, p. 252
105-5-3	Amended	V. 39, p. 252

105-5-6	Amended	V. 39, p. 252
105-5-7	Amended	V. 39, p. 252
105-5-8	Amended	V. 39, p. 252
105-5-11	Revoked	V. 38, p. 368

**AGENCY 109: BOARD OF EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
109-3-3	Amended	V. 39, p. 30
109-3-4	Amended	V. 39, p. 31
109-5-1	Amended	V. 38, p. 153
109-5-1a	Amended	V. 39, p.32
109-8-1	Amended	V. 38, p. 153
109-8-2	Amended	V. 38, p. 154
109-11-1a	Amended	V. 39, p.32
109-11-6a	Amended	V. 38, p. 154

**AGENCY 111: KANSAS LOTTERY**

A complete index listing all regulations filed by the Kansas Lottery from 1988 through 2000 can be found in the Vol. 19, No. 52, December 28, 2000 *Kansas Register*. A list of regulations filed from 2001 through 2003 can be found in the Vol. 22, No. 52, December 25, 2003 *Kansas Register*. A list of regulations filed from 2004 through 2005 can be found in the Vol. 24, No. 52, December 29, 2005 *Kansas Register*. A list of regulations filed from 2006 through 2007 can be found in the Vol. 26, No. 52, December 27, 2007 *Kansas Register*. A list of regulations filed from 2008 through November 2009 can be found in the Vol. 28, No. 53, December 31, 2009 *Kansas Register*. A list of regulations filed from December 1, 2009, through December 21, 2011, can be found in the Vol. 30, No. 52, December 29, 2011 *Kansas Register*. A list of regulations filed from December 22, 2011, through November 6, 2013, can be found in the Vol. 32, No. 52, December 26, 2013 *Kansas Register*. A list of

regulations filed from November 7, 2013, through December 31, 2015, can be found in the Vol. 34, No. 53, December 31, 2015 *Kansas Register*. A list of regulations filed from 2016 through 2017, can be found in the Vol. 36, No. 52, December 28, 2017 *Kansas Register*. A list of regulations filed from 2018 through 2019, can be found in the Vol. 38, No. 52, December 26, 2019 *Kansas Register*.

Reg. No.	Action	Register
111-4-3595	New	V. 39, p. 57
111-4-3596	New	V. 39, p. 58
111-4-3597	New	V. 39, p. 59
111-4-3598	New	V. 39, p. 60
111-4-3599	New	V. 39, p. 61
111-4-3600	New	V. 39, p. 63
111-19-72	Amended	V. 39, p. 64
111-19-73	New	V. 39, p. 64
111-19-74	New	V. 39, p. 65
111-19-75	New	V. 39, p. 65
111-19-76	New	V. 39, p. 74
111-301-60	Amended	V. 39, p. 66
111-301-62	Amended	V. 39, p. 67
111-302-4	Amended	V. 39, p. 68
111-401-253	New	V. 39, p. 69
111-401-254	New	V. 39, p. 69
111-401-255	New	V. 39, p. 71
111-501-71	Amended	V. 39, p. 71
111-501-81	Amended	V. 39, p. 71
111-501-149	New	V. 39, p. 72
111-501-150	New	V. 39, p. 72
111-501-151	New	V. 39, p. 73
111-501-152	New	V. 39, p. 73
111-501-153	New	V. 39, p. 74

**AGENCY 112: KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
112-105-1	Amended	V. 39, p. 251

**AGENCY 115: DEPARTMENT OF WILDLIFE, PARKS AND TOURISM**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
115-2-1	Amended	V. 38, p. 1089
115-2-3	Amended	V. 38, p. 370
115-2-4	Amended	V. 38, p. 371
115-2-7	Revoked	V. 38, p. 1091
115-3-2	Amended	V. 38, p. 371
115-4-2	Amended	V. 38, p. 1408
115-4-4	Amended	V. 38, p. 371
115-4-11	Amended	V. 38, p. 372
115-5-1	Amended	V. 38, p. 541
115-5-2	Amended	V. 38, p. 542
115-5-3	Amended	V. 38, p. 1091
115-5-3a	New	V. 38, p. 1091
115-5-4	Amended	V. 38, p. 542
115-6-1	Amended	V. 38, p. 543
115-7-1	Amended	V. 38, p. 1409
115-7-3	Amended	V. 38, p. 1410
115-7-4	Amended	V. 38, p. 1410
115-7-10	Amended	V. 38, p. 1411
115-8-1	Amended	V. 38, p. 543
115-8-13a	New	V. 38, p. 1169
115-9-5	Amended	V. 38, p. 375
115-9-9	Amended	V. 38, p. 1411
115-11-2	Amended	V. 38, p. 127
115-13-4	Amended	V. 38, p. 544
115-15-1	Amended	V. 38, p. 1412
115-15-2	Amended	V. 38, p. 1413
115-18-6a	Amended	V. 38, p. 1414
115-20-7	Amended	V. 38, p. 545

**AGENCY 128: DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE—KANSAS ATHLETIC COMMISSION**

Reg. No.	Action	Register
128-5-1	Amended	V. 38, p. 1197
128-6-8	New	V. 38, p. 1198

**Kansas Register  
Secretary of State  
1st Floor, Memorial Hall  
120 SW 10th Ave.  
Topeka, KS 66612-1594**

---